
Memorandum 
Office of the Village Manager 

 
 
 

TO: Honorable President Rutt and Village Council 

FROM: Darwin D. P. McClary, Village Manager 

DATE: February 6, 2025 

  

RE: ANALYSIS OF REQUEST TO COMBINE DDA BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

  

  

PURPOSE OF REVIEW 
 
On November 25, 2024, the Lake Orion Village Council adopted a motion to direct the Village 
Manager to enter a discussion with the DDA Executive Director, to weigh the relative merits of the 
proposal and make the recommendation to Village Council on what they feel may be in the best interests 
of the community.  Council issued this direction in response to a request from Council Member Michael 
Lamb that the Village Council consider combining the DDA Board with the Planning Commission as 
permitted by the Michigan Recodified Tax Increment Financing Act, Public Act 57 of 2018.  This 
memorandum is the product of the direction provided by Council. 
 

REQUEST TO COMBINE BOARDS 
 
In his request, Council Member Lamb provides a statement of merits for considering the combination of 
the DDA Board with the Planning Commission, including fostering a broader representation of the entire 
community and government on the board, enhancing communication, better coordination of work, 
reducing costs and streamlining accounting functions, eliminating duplication of effort by the DDA 
Executive Director by reporting to one board instead of three, improving compliance, enhancing visibility, 
and facilitating greater planning staff support.  Council Member Lamb’s statement is attached as 
ATTACHMENT 1. 
 

REBUTTAL TO REQUEST TO COMBINE BOARDS 
 
DDA Executive Director Matt Gibb and I met on November 26, 2024, to discuss Council Member Lamb’s 
proposal and Council’s direction.  I requested that Mr. Gibb provide to me in writing his own thoughts on 
the advantages and disadvantages of the proposal.  I received Mr. Gibb’s written comments, and they are 
attached as ATTACHMENT 2. 
 
 

  



FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
The proposal to combine the two boards appears to stem from a few core concerns: (1) budgetary and 
spending control; (2) communication and cooperation between the Village and the DDA; and (3) 
duplication of staffing and/or operations resulting in unnecessary costs.  It is my opinion that the Michigan 
Recodified Tax Increment Financing Act adequately addresses these matters.  Under the Act, the Village 
Council possesses oversight control and budgetary authority.  The Council has the authority to establish 
the Downtown Development Authority as well as to dissolve it.  The Council has final appointing authority 
of all members of the DDA Board.  The Council approves the annual budget of the DDA prior to the DDA 
Board’s final adoption of the budget.  The Village has approval authority over DDA development projects 
through its Master Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and Planning Commission site plan and public infrastructure 
review processes.  The extent to which the Village Council’s and Planning Commission’s authority and 
control are exerted is the responsibility of those two boards. 
 
Addressing concerns about communication and cooperation between the Village and the DDA, I 
acknowledge that these could be strengthened.  I continue to believe that the connection between the 
Village and the DDA is not as strong as it should be due to the current structure of appointments to the 
DDA Board and representation on the DDA Board.  State law permits either the Village President or the 
Village Manager to act as appointing authority for the DDA Board and to serve as a voting member on the 
Board.  Current Village code delegates that responsibility to the Village President.  However, elected 
officials usually lack the detailed knowledge of state law and the complicated concepts of tax increment 
financing mechanisms to be able to adequately advocate for the Village and provide some level of 
influence and oversight on the DDA Board.  As a result of this lack of knowledge, the Village President risks 
becoming an advocate of the DDA rather than having the capacity to balance the needs and goals of the 
DDA with those of the Village government and greater community.  To the contrary, the Village Manager 
possesses this knowledge.  The Village Manager position is also the position responsible for preparation 
of the annual government budget, serving as the community’s Zoning Administrator, Act 51 Street 
Administrator, and advisor to all boards and commissions of the Village.  The Village Managere’s primary 
responsibility is to manage the Village government.  This unique knowledge, experience, and roles may 
make the Village Manager the most suitable representative of the Village government on the DDA Board. 
 
Addressing the concerns about duplication of staffing and/or operations resulting in unnecessary costs, it 
is my opinion that the DDA properly manages its operations and avails itself of available opportunities for 
efficiencies.  I am not convinced that combining the DDA Board and Planning Commission would result in 
any appreciable reductions in staffing, facilities, equipment, or processes above what is already achieved 
through the DDA/Village services agreement.  The only possible reduction in duplication might be the 
combination of the DDA offices with the Village offices, but I do not believe that the space limitations at 
Village Hall would accommodate the needs of the DDA, and, in any event, the cost savings would be 
relatively minor. 
 
Upon review of the information submitted, I conclude that the interests of the community are best served 
by maintaining two separate boards, a Downtown Development Authority Board of Directors and a 
Planning Commission.  While the two boards share some common interests, I find that the duties of each 
may be incompatible in some regards or may dilute the representation of interested downtown property 
owners and businesses in downtown development and redevelopment decision making.  Furthermore, 
combining the two boards would not address the concerns outlined in Council Member Lamb’s proposal. 
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